

SITE SPECIFIC FLOOD RISK ASSESSMENT

Omni Plaza SHD



eireng.com



DOCUMENT CONTROL:

Job title		Omni Plaza SHD			Job No.	201121	
Document title		Site Specific Flood Risk Assessment					
Document ref		201121-ECE-ZZ-XX-RP-C-0002 – PL3					
Rev	Date	Status	Prepared by	Chee	cked by	Approved by	
PL1	30/09/21	PL	ТВ	ED		JL	
Descrip	otion	Planning Issue					
Rev	Date	Status	Prepared by	Chee	cked by	Approved by	
PL2	07/12/21	PL	ТВ	ED		JL	
Descrip	otion	Planning Issue					
Rev	Date	Status	Prepared by	Chee	cked by	Approved by	
PL3	23/08/22	PL	ТВ	ED		JL	
Description		Planning Issue					



CONTENTS:

1.0	INTRODUCTION	1
2.0	SITE LAYOUT LOCATION	2
3.0	SITE GEOLOGY	3
4.0	FLOOD RISK IDENTIFICATION	4
4.1	AVAILABLE FLOOD STUDIES AND INFORMATION	4
4.2	HISTORICAL FLOODING (FLOODMAPS.IE)	5
4.3	CATCHMENT FLOOD RISK ASSESSMENT AND MANAGEMENT STUDY (CFRAM) (2016)	6
4.4	DUBLIN CITY DEVELOPMENT PLAN 2016-2022 STRATEGIC FLOOD RISK ASSESSMENT (201 7	.6)
4.5	FLOODRESILIENCITY PROJECT (2012)	8
4.6	FLOODRESILIENCITY INTERIM REVIEW OCTOBER 2011 (2012)	9
4.7	OPW PRELIMINARY FLOOD RISK ASSESSMENT (2011)	10
4.8	GDSDS MAPPING (2005)	11
5.0	FLOOD RISK ASSESSMENT AND MITIGATION MEASURES	12
5.1	COASTAL	12
5.2	FLUVIAL	12
5.3	PLUVIAL	12
5.4	GROUNDWATER	13
5.5	PUBLIC SEWER	13
5.6	FLOOD RISK SUMMARY	14
5.7	PROPOSED FLOOD MITIGATIONS MEASURES	16
APPEN	NDIX A - FLOODINFO.IE HISTORICAL FLOODING REPORT	19
APPEN	NDIX B - RECORD DRAINAGE MAPPING	20
APPEN	NDIX C - OVERLAND FLOW ROUTES	21
APPEN	NDIX D - PROPOSED SURFACE WATER DRAINAGE NETWORK	22



1.0 INTRODUCTION

This report forms part of a planning application by Serendale Limited for development at OMNI Plaza SHD, Omni Park, Swords Road, Santry, Dublin 9.

The proposed development comprises:

Permission for a 7-year duration is sought by Serendale Limited for a Strategic Housing Development which comprises the demolition of the existing industrial / warehouse buildings northwest of Omni Park Shopping Centre, Santry, Dublin 9 and the construction of 457 no. apartments across 4 no. blocks, ranging in height from 4-12 storeys (over basement). The proposal includes 2 no. retail/café/restaurant units, 1 no. community building, 1 no. childcare facility, 1no. residential amenity space and 5 no. ESB substations.

The development also provides for a basement carpark of 213 no. spaces and 7 no. motorcycle spaces with 7 no. creche drop-off parking spaces and 6 no. carshare parking spaces located in newly reconfigured surface carpark. The proposal provides for 768 no. bicycle parking spaces.

The proposal includes the provision of a new public open space plaza, with consequential revisions to existing commercial car parking areas, to integrate the proposals with the wider District Centre.

The proposal includes the provision of pedestrian and cycle connections and improvements through Omni Park Shopping Centre, including a plaza and cycle/pedestrian link substantially in the form permitted as part of the Omni Living Strategic Housing Development (Ref. ABP-307011-20).

Access to the proposed 213 no. basement car parking spaces is via the existing Omni Park Shopping Centre. A secondary servicing and emergency access is via the existing service road to the rear of existing retail premises at Omni Park Shopping Centre and accessed from the Swords Road.

The development provides for all associated and ancillary site development, demolition and clearance works, hoarding during construction, revisions to car parking within the Omni Park Shopping Centre, soft and hard landscaping, public realm works, public lighting and signage, ancillary spaces, plant including photovoltaic panels, water infrastructure, utilities and services.

The application is accompanied by an Environmental Impact Assessment Report.

A full description of the development is contained within the public notices, architectural drawings and accompanying application documents.

This report provides an assessment of the subject site for the fluvial, coastal, pluvial, groundwater and public sewer flood risk for the proposed development.

The layout of the proposed development is detailed in the series of planning drawings by JFA architects submitted with this application.

This report should be read in conjunction with EirEng Consulting Engineers drawings.



2.0 SITE LAYOUT LOCATION

The location of the proposed development is identified in red in Figure 1 below.



Figure 1 - Site Location

The existing site is located in Santry, Dublin. The lands primarily comprise the former Molloy & Sherry Warehouse premises and lands generally to the north west corner of the Omni Park Shopping Centre including existing carpark. The site is located west of Lidl and to the north and east of the IMC Cinema within the Omni Park Shopping Centre and east of Shanliss Avenue.

The application site includes lands within the existing Omni Park Shopping Centre and the primary access is proposed from same. Service access will be from the Swords Road along the access road south of AIB, Swords Road, Santry. User access to the site will be via a new ramp into the underground car park from the Omni Park Shopping Centre development.



Fire tender access to the site will be via the existing private industrial road located directly east of the site & from the OMNI shopping centre carpark, both of which connect to the Swords Road.

3.0 SITE GEOLOGY

Geological Survey Ireland was consulted to determine the geological conditions of the site and the surrounding area.

The sub-soil on the site is identified as "Made Ground" which would be typical for an urban environment. The underlying bedrock on the site is identified as dark limestone and shale and part of the Lucan Formation. The formation comprises of dark-grey to black, fine-grained, micritic limestones with interbedded dark-grey calcar.

The groundwater vulnerability for the site is classified as low and no karst features are identified within the surrounding area.



Figure 2 - Local Geological Conditions



4.0 FLOOD RISK IDENTIFICATION

An assessment of flood risk for the site has been undertaken in accordance with the Planning System and Flood Risk Management (PSFMR) Guidelines.

The objectives are to:

- Identify potential sources of flood risk
- Confirm the level of flood risk and identify key hydraulic features
- Assess the impact the proposed development has on flood risk
- Develop appropriate flood risk mitigation and management measures which will allow for the long-term development of the site.

The relevant components to be considered in the identification and assessment of flood risk are as per Table A1 of the PSFRM Guidelines:

- Coastal flooding from high sea levels
- Fluvial flooding from water courses
- Pluvial flooding from rainfall / surface water
- Ground Water flooding from springs / raised ground water
- Public Sewer flooding from public sewers

Each component will be investigated and an assessment of the likelihood of a flood occurring will be undertaken as well as the possible consequences of a flood event.

The Greater Dublin Strategic Drainage Study (GDSDS) and PSFRM set out the best practice standards for flood risk in Ireland. These are summarised in Table 1 - Summary Level of Service, below:

Flooding Source	Drainage	River	Tidal/Coastal	
Residential	1% AEP 0.1% AEP		0.1% AEP	
Commercial	1% AEP 1% AEP		0.5% AEP	
Water-compatible	_	>1% AEP	>0.5% AEP	

Table 1	-	Summary	Level	of	Service
---------	---	---------	-------	----	---------

4.1 Available Flood Studies and Information

The area surrounding the site has been subject to several indicative flood mapping and modelling studies. The studies examined as part of this flood risk assessment are detailed below:

- Historical Flooding Floodinfo.ie
- Catchment Flood Risk Assessment and Management Study (CFRAM) (2016)
- Dublin City Development Plan 2016-2022 PFRA (2016)



- FloodResilienCity Project (2012)
- FloodResilienCity Report October 2011 (2012)
- OPW Preliminary Flood Risk Assessment (2011)
- GDSDS Sewer Flood Maps (2015)

4.2 Historical Flooding (Floodmaps.ie)

Floodinfo.ie (formerly floodmaps.ie) was consulted to identify historical flooding events within the vicinity of the site. A flood event identification node is located adjacent to the site but relates to a flood event of the river Wad in 1965. This event occurred approximately 550m south of the site at the point where the river is culverted underneath the Swords Road.



Figure 3 Floodmaps.ie Record Flood Events

The historical flood report is included in Appendix A.



4.3 Catchment Flood Risk Assessment and Management Study (CFRAM) (2016)

The National CFRAM study involved detailed hydraulic modelling of river bodies and coastal areas and is the most detailed flood mapping undertaken in the Dublin region. The project commenced in June 2011 with final flood maps issued during 2016.

The CFRAM flood maps do not cover the area of the site and as such do not identify any flood risk for the site. The nearest available map is located approximately 1km from the site, where limited fluvial and no coastal flooding is indicated.



Figure 4 Santry CFRAMS Flood Mapping (2016)



4.4 Dublin City Development Plan 2016-2022 Strategic Flood Risk Assessment (2016)

The Dublin City Development Plan 2016-2022 Strategic Flood Risk Assessment (SFRA) was prepared to provide an area-wide assessment of all types of significant flood risk to inform strategic land use planning decisions. As part of the SFRA a number of predictive flood maps as well as historical flooding information was analysed to create a composite flood map.

The SFRA flood maps do not cover the area of the site and as such do not identify any flood risk for the site. The nearest available map is located approximately 1km from the site where limited fluvial and no coastal flooding, pluvial or groundwater flooding is indicated.



Figure 5 Dublin City Development Plan 2016-2022 PFRA (2016)

info@eireng.com



4.5 FloodResilienCity Project (2012)

As part of a European wide programme, Dublin city was included in a collaboration with other EU authorities to share knowledge and experience in relation to flood risk.

The main output of the project was a citywide pluvial flood risk map which was developed from a detailed hydraulic model based on the 180mm (1% AEP) event.

As can be seen in Figure 6 below a portion of the site is identified as having a risk of pluvial flooding.



Figure 6 FloodResilienCity Pluvial Flood Maps (2012)





4.6 FloodResilienCity Interim Review October 2011 (2012)

Following on from the FloodResilienCity study a report was commissioned to analyse the fluvial and pluvial flooding events which occurred across Dublin city due to an extreme rainfall event on the 23rd and 24th October 2011. These extreme rainfall events have been estimated to be between a 1 in 50 and 1 in 100 year event across the majority of Dublin.

As part of the report a series of detailed maps identifying areas that flooded and their cause was created. As can be seen in Figure 7 below there was no pluvial or fluvial flooding recorded on or adjacent to the site during the October 2011 event.



Figure 7 FloodResilientCity Interim Review October 2011 (2012)



4.7 OPW Preliminary Flood Risk Assessment (2011)

The OPW Preliminary Flood Risk Assessment (PRFA) was a national screening study which identified areas that may be at a significant risk associated with flooding. As such it was not a detailed assessment of flood risk but rather an indicative study with the majority of the fluvial and coastal information contained within the report since being superseded by the national CFRAM study.

However, the PFRA also contains useful pluvial and groundwater flooding information which was reviewed as part of this FRA. As can be seen in Figure 8 below there is no pluvial or groundwater flooding identified on or adjacent to the proposed site.



Figure 8 OPW PFRA (2011)



4.8 GDSDS Mapping (2005)

The Greater Dublin Strategic Drainage Strategy (GDSDS) was completed in 2005 and involved the mapping and modelling of major sewer lines in the greater Dublin area. From the recommendations of the report policies were implemented to ensure a consistent approach to drainage infrastructure, planning, design, construction and operation. As part of the study maps were produced for the future 2031 scenario showing sewer lines at risk of surcharging and flooding.

As can be seen in Figure 9 below the public surface water sewers located in the Swords Road adjacent to the site were not modelled as part of the study. The nearest public surface water sewers identified on the GDSDS flood maps are located in the adjacent Magenta Hall housing estate and approximately 200m south of the site in the Swords Road. Both public surface water sewers are identified as flooding less than 5m³ volume for the 5-year return period event, while the downstream 225mm sewer is identified as flooding for a 30-year return period or less.



Record drainage mapping information is included in Appendix B.

Figure 9 GDSDS Sewer Flooding Maps (2005)

info@eireng.com



5.0 FLOOD RISK ASSESSMENT AND MITIGATION MEASURES

5.1 Coastal

As detailed previously in the Section 4.3, the national CFRAM study did not identify any coastal flood risk for the site. The nearest available map is approximately 1km from the site and identifies no coastal flooding.

Floodinfo.ie was also checked to identify any past coastal flooding events within the vicinity of the site and none were found.

Based on the above information and given that the Irish Sea lies approximately 6km from the subject site, and the site level is 56m above sea level the site is considered to be at low risk of coastal flooding.

5.2 Fluvial

The Santry River lies approximately 1km north of the site and the River Wad lies approximately 550m south of the site.

As detailed previously in the Section 4.3, the national CFRAM study did not identify any fluvial flood risk for the site. The nearest available map is approximately 1km from the site and identifies limited fluvial flooding from the Santry River.

As the Santry River is a significant distance from the site and as the site is approximately 10m higher than the Santry River, it is not considered to pose a flood risk to the site.

Floodinfo.ie was also checked to identify any past fluvial flooding events within the vicinity of the site. A flood event identification node was found to be located adjacent to the site which related to an event that occurred in 1965 from the River Wad, as shown on Figure 3.

The event occurred approximately 550m south of the site at the point where the river is culverted underneath the Swords Road. As the event occurred a significant distance from the site and as the site is approximately 10m higher than the River Wad, it is not considered to pose a flood risk to the site.

As detailed previously in the Section 4.4, the Dublin City Development Plan SFRA flood maps did not identify any flood risk for the site. The nearest available map is approximately 1km from the site and identifies limited fluvial flooding.

The FloodResilienCity Interim Review October 2011 mapping did not identify any fluvial flooding on the site.

Based on the above information the site is considered to be at low risk of fluvial flooding.

5.3 Pluvial

Pluvial flooding is the result of rainfall-generated overland flows which arise before run-off can enter a watercourse or sewer. It is usually associated with high intensity rainfall and typically occurs in the summer months.

As detailed previously in the Section 4.5, the FloodResilienCity pluvial flood maps have identified a portion of the site at risk of pluvial flooding.



It is worth noting that the modelling for the pluvial flood map was based on a relatively broadscale digital terrain model which did not include small scale (less than 2m²) features, walls or other barriers to flow and is intended to indicate the potential for pluvial risk.

The FloodResilienCity Interim Review October 2011 mapping did not identify any pluvial flooding on the site.

Basement construction on site will reduce the ground levels while under construction. Collected rainwater and minor inflows may need to be removed from the basement excavations by pumping to existing sewer in agreement as per normal construction practices.

Floodinfo.ie was also checked to identify any past coastal flooding events within the vicinity of the site and none were found. There is also no anecdotal evidence of any historic pluvial flooding within the site.

Based on the above information, and primarily on the FloodResilienCity flood maps, the site is considered to be at risk of pluvial flooding.

5.4 Groundwater

As detailed previously in the Section 4.7, the OPW PRFA flood maps do not identify any groundwater flood risk for the site.

The GSI groundwater vulnerability classification for the site is low and there are no karst features located in the area surrounding the site.

Floodinfo.ie was also checked to identify any past coastal flooding events within the vicinity of the site and none were found.

Groundwater flood risk from the proposed basement construction have been assessed under a Basement Impact Assessment (BIA) undertaken by AWN Consulting submitted as part of this application. The BIA concluded that there will be no long-term impact on water levels in the overburden or underlying aquifer, no impact on the current water body status and no impact on groundwater flow patterns in the local area. The BIA also concluded that the bedrock water table will not be affected by the excavation works.

5.5 Public Sewer

As detailed previously GDSDS sewer flood mapping for the area does not cover the public surface water sewer located in the Swords Road adjacent to the site.

The nearest public surface water sewers identified on the GDSDS flood maps are located in the adjacent Magenta Hall housing estate and approximately 200m south of the site in the Swords Road. Both public surface water sewers are identified as flooding less than 5m³ volume for the 5-year return period event, while the downstream 225mm sewer is identified as flooding for a 30 year return period or less.

The public surface water sewer in the Swords Road mapped as part of the GDSDS is located approximately 200m south of the site and at a ground level approximately 4.5m lower than the subject site.

Given the height difference between the existing public surface water sewers and the proposed development, and the overland flow paths leading away from the site, the site is considered to be at low risk of public sewer flooding.



5.6 Flood Risk Summary

The PSFRM Guidelines adopt a sequential approach to managing flood risk by reducing exposure to flooding through land-use planning. The approach adopted by the PSFRM Guidelines establishes three zones (PSFRM Guidelines paragraph 2.23) on a sliding scale of flood risk – refer to Table 2 - Flood Risk Zones, below.

Zone A	High Probability of Flooding Where the annual probability of flooding is: greater than 1% for fluvial flooding or greater than 0.5% for coastal flooding
Zone B	Moderate Probability of Flooding Where the annual probability of flooding is: between 0.1% and 1% for fluvial flooding or between 0.1% and 0.5% for coastal flooding
Zone C	Low Probability of Flooding Where the annual probability of flooding is: less than 0.1% for fluvial flooding and less than 0.1% for coastal flooding

Table 2 - Flood Risk Zones

Flood risk zones are determined on the basis of the probability of river and coastal flooding only (PSFRM Guidelines paragraph 2.24). Other sources of flooding (such as groundwater, infrastructure and pluvial) do not affect the delineation of flood risk zones. These other sources of flooding should be considered and mitigated in design. Flood risk zones are determined on the basis of the current flood risk, i.e. without the inclusion of climate change factors (PSFRM Guidelines paragraph 2.24).

Based on the information detailed above, the site is considered to be at low risk of flooding from coastal, fluvial, groundwater and public sewer sources.

The site is considered to be at risk of flooding from pluvial sources.

In accordance with the Department of Environment, Heritage and Local Government and the Office of Public Work's jointly published Guidance Document for Planning Authorities - The Planning System and Flood Risk Management – the site is located within **Flood Zone C**.

The PSFRM Guidelines classify potential development in terms of its vulnerability to flooding. The types of development falling within each vulnerability class are described in Table 3.1 of the PSFRM Guidelines, which is reproduced in Table 3 - Development Vulnerability Class, below:



Vulnerability Class	Land uses and types of development which include:			
Highly vulnerable development (including	Garda, ambulance and fire stations and command centres required to be operational during flooding;			
essential infrastructure)	Hospitals;			
	Emergency access and egress points;			
	Schools;			
	Dwelling houses, student halls of residence and hostels;			
	Residential institutions such as residential care homes, children's homes and social services homes;			
	Caravans and mobile home parks;			
	Dwelling houses designed, constructed or adapted for the elderly or, other people with impaired mobility; and			
	Essential infrastructure, such as primary transport and utilities distribution, including electricity generating power stations and sub-stations, water and sewage treatment, and potential significant sources of pollution (SEVESO sites, IPPC sites, etc.) in the event of flooding.			
	Buildings used for: retail, leisure, warehousing, commercial, industrial and non-residential institutions;			
Loss willhorable	Land and buildings used for holiday or short-let caravans and camping, subject to specific warning and evacuation plans;			
development	Land and buildings used for agriculture and forestry;			
	Waste treatment (except landfill and hazardous waste);			
	Mineral working and processing; and			
	Local transport infrastructure.			
	Flood control infrastructure;			
	Docks, marinas and wharves;			
	Navigation facilities;			
	Ship building, repairing and dismantling, dockside fish processing and			
Water-compatible	refrigeration and compatible activities requiring a waterside location;			
development	Water-based recreation and tourism (excluding sleeping accommodation);			
	Lifeguard and coastguard stations;			
	Amenity open space, outdoor sports and recreation and essential facilities such as changing rooms; and			
	Essential ancillary sleeping or residential accommodation for staff required by uses in this category (subject to a specific warning and evacuation plan).			



Table 3 - Development Vulnerability Class

The majority of the proposed development is considered to be **a Highly Vulnerable Development**, while a portion of the scheme is retail/ commercial including a portion of the ground floor and is considered to be **Less Vulnerable Development**.

The PSFRM Guidelines define the zones in which each class of development is appropriate – this is summarised in Table 4 - "Appropriateness" Matrix (PSFRM Guidelines paragraph 3.6), below. In order to allow consideration of such development, the PSFRM Guidelines provide a Justification Test, which establishes the criteria under which desirable development of a site in a floodplain may be warranted (PSFRM Guidelines paragraph 3.7).

	Flood Zone A	Flood Zone B	Flood Zone C	
Highly Vulnerable Development	Justification Test	Justification Test	Appropriate	
Less Vulnerable Development	Justification Test	Appropriate	Appropriate	
Water-compatible Development	Appropriate	Appropriate	Appropriate	

Table 4 - "Appropriateness" Matrix

As such the proposed development for the site is **appropriate** for the level of flood risk subject to mitigation measures being implemented to account for the pluvial flooding risk. The proposed mitigations measures are detailed in the following section.

5.7 Proposed Flood Mitigations Measures

As detailed previously the site is considered to be at low risk of pluvial flooding based on the FloodResilienCity pluvial flooding maps. The following section details flood risk management strategies which will be implemented to mitigate the risk of pluvial flooding for the proposed development.

Localised ramping (in accordance with Building Regulations Part M) will provide a threshold of at least 50mm at the entrance to all ground floor doorways to provide passive protection during extreme rainfall events.

Overland flow routes will also be incorporated into the development with any overland flows directed towards the central landscaping areas located between each apartment block and with a flow pathway provided through the external hardstanding areas of the site. A sketch detailing the overland flow routes, including existing overland flow routes, is included in Appendix C.

Collected rainwater and minor inflows may need to be removed from the basement excavations during construction by over pumping to existing sewers in accordance with nominal construction practices During the construction phase, mitigation measures are incorporated into the project-specific Construction & Environmental Management Plan (CEMP) and the project specific Resource Waste Management Plan



(RWMP). These specific measures will provide protection to the receiving soil and water environments during the construction phase. The CEMP and RWMP provide for work practices that are industry best practice measures that will be applied during the construction phase, and they are in no way included to avoid or reduce potential harmful effects (if any) to European sites(if any), which is a matter that is the subject of separate assessment.

A surface water drainage system with SUDS features will be incorporated into the development to positively drain the entire site and to manage surface water run-off from the site. Significant green sedum roof extents as well as podium attenuation, planting and landscaping at surface level will capture the first flush of intense rainfall events. All surface water flows will be conveyed to a storm water attenuation tank. The attenuation tank is designed to accommodate the 1 in 100 year flood event plus an additional 20% for climate change. The outflow from the attenuation tank will be limited to 2 l/s/ha. A maintenance schedule will be established by the management company for the development to ensure the surface water drainage network undergoes regular maintenance. The surface water drainage network will also be inspected after extreme weather events to check for damage and blockages. The proposed surface water drainage network and SUDS features are detailed on EirEng drawings 201121-ECE-ZZ-XX-DR-C-0002 & 201121-ECE-ZZ-XX-DR-C-0006 included in Appendix D.

Access to the development is to be provided from a new basement ramp located on the southern boundary on the site connecting into the existing Omni Park Shopping Centre development. A localised shallow ramp at the connection point into the existing Omni Centre development will provide a passive threshold of 100mm to protect the basement from potential overland flow routes in the vicinity.

The combination of localised ramping at ground floor entrance doorways to provide a threshold, overland flow routes directed away from the buildings and a surface water drainage network including attenuation storage designed to best practice guidelines is considered to be sufficient mitigation measures to provide protection to the development from the potential pluvial flooding risk.



6.0 FLOOD RISK ASSESSMENT AND MITIGATION

Having reviewed the available information the site is considered to be at low risk of coastal and fluvial flooding and therefore in accordance with the Department of Environment, Heritage and Local Government and the Office of Public Work's jointly published Guidance Document for Planning Authorities - The Planning System and Flood Risk Management.

The majority of the proposed development is classed as Highly Vulnerable with a portion of the scheme considered to be Less Vulnerable (residential comprises only a portion of the ground floor) in accordance with Table 3.1 of the PSFRM Guidelines. The information presented within the following chapters indicate that the proposed site is located within 'Flood Zone C' and is therefore considered **Appropriate**, for a residential development.

The site is also considered to be at low risk of ground water and public sewer flooding.

The site is considered to be at risk of pluvial flooding based on the FloodResilienCity mapping. Several mitigation measures including localised ramping at ground floor entrance doorways to provide a threshold, overland flow routes directed away from the buildings and a surface water drainage network including attenuation storage designed to best practice guidelines is considered to be sufficient mitigation measures to provide protection to the development from the potential pluvial flooding risk.

As the site will be positively drained, with the proposed SUDS measures reducing the outflow from the site to 2 l/s/ha, and as the existing overland flow routes are within the Omni Park Shopping Centre development falling away from the site, the proposed development will have no measurable increase on the flood risk to neighbouring lands.

Groundwater flood risk from the proposed basement construction have been assessed under a Basement Impact Assessment (BIA) undertaken by AWN Consulting submitted as part of this application. The BIA concluded that there will be no long-term impact on water levels in the shallow or bedrock aquifer, no impact on the current water body status and no impact on groundwater flow patterns in the local area. The BIA also concluded that the bedrock water table will not be affected by the excavation works.

As a result of the analysis, design and mitigation measures the proposed development is considered to be in line with the core principles of the Planning Guidelines and Objective outlined in the Dublin City Development Plan 2016-2022.

Under the Planning Guidelines the site is therefore considered suitable for development of commercial and residential land uses.



APPENDIX A - FLOODINFO.IE HISTORICAL FLOODING REPORT

24th April, 1958.

Report to: City Engineer.

Lenging assertation

an a mara a sec

Wad River.

Enclosures

Design Criteria, Design Sheets, Drainage Areas 6" Plan S.M.D. 638. 12" Plan S.M.D. 639. Longitudinal Section S.M.D. 640.

The attached 6" Plan S.M.D. 638 shows the catchment of the Wad River which has an approximate area of 1824 acres. The catchment is bounded on the North by the Santry and Nanniken catchments, on the West by the Finglas and in the South by the Claremont and Tolka River catchments.

The peak run-offs shown on the design sheets have been calculated by the Lloyd-Davies method. The catchment area of approximately 3 sq. miles comes within the limiting 5 sq. miles size recommended by Rouse for treatment by the Lloyd-Davies method (see Design Griteria). Furthermore the usual objection to this method on account of the retardations due to storage in the watercourse do not have any serious effect on the accuracy of the calculations as the catchment is highly developed. The major portion of the catchment within the City boundary is zoned for housing and the agricultural land in the upper reaches, outside the City, could possibly be developed in the future.

The time of concentration for various points in the river have been calculated on the assumption that the entire river upstream has been culverted. An impervious factor of 30% (fully developed area, on the partially separate system) has been used throughout to determine the peak run offs. This factor is considered safe both for present and future conditions of development in the catchment area. The attached report recommends that a 40% factor should be adopted when calculating peak run offs from open agricultural land. The run off produced however, by this factor is accommodated in part by the considerable flood storage usually available in open ditches and streams and the velocity of flow in the main watercourse is lower than that which results from proper culverting.

Since 584 acres of the catchment upstream of the Wad Bridge on Ballymun Road is at present mainly composed of farmland a check was made on the peak run-off by using the open stream Kirpich formula with an impervious factor of 40%. The calculated peak run off amounts to 12 cumins per acre. This rate agrees with the result got from the Lloyd-Davies calculation for culverting, using a 30% factor. Hence the effect of building up an area and culverting the stream reduces the time of peak but this is compensated for by a reduction in the impervious factor from 40% to 30%.

Rainfall intensities have been derived from Ministry of Health curves. Pipe culvert sizes have been calculated from the Grimp & Bruges formula and box culverts using the Ghezy formula with a constant G = 100 and considering invert, sides and roof as wetter perimeter.

The available gradients shown on the longitudinal section S.M.D. 640 have been taken along the course of the existing river except between points E and F where the proposed culvert is shown crossing Ballymun Road and following the line of the proposed Gollins Avenue Extension.

, <u>]</u>

The river is culverted at the following points;

- (1) Alongaide Ballyman Read short length of 36" dia. concrete pipes.
- (11) Wed Bridge, Ballyman Road = 3'9" x 4'6" high stone arch.
- (111) Albert Agricultural College to Swords Read 4'0" x 3'6" concrete box culvert.
- (17) Averds Read to Beaument Read 4+0" x 4+0" concrete box culvert.
- (v) Under Beaumont Road 8*5" x 4*2" stone arch.
 - (vi) Malahide Read to Clontarf Golf Club. 4'0" x 4'0" concrete box culvert and 40" dia.concrete pipes.
 - (vii) Under G.N.R. 5' x 2'6" stone arch.
 - (viii) Under Nowth Road twin S6"dian.concrete pipes, 4'6" x 8'0" and 5' x 12' high stone arches.
 - (ix) Under Clonserf Road twin 4' x 8'6" high bax sulvert.

Provision has been made in the North Dublin Brainage Scheme for culverting this river from the storm water overflow in the Clontarf Golf Club to Clontarf Read.

The culvert sizes and gradients indicated for various sections of the river should not be finally fixed until such time as a dotail survey of the read, house and drain levels in the surrounding area is carefully made. This survey is of particular importance between Doyle's Bridge on Beaumont Read and Malahide Read. The River between these points provides considerable flood storage during storas and the adjacent lev lying Coltic Park area suffers from occasional flooding.

Eny culverting proposal for the river should make prevision for the construction of suitable wiring walls and a properly designed grid at the inlet. Serious blookages have taken place at River grids in the past. Finally, measures should be adopted to connect up all surface water drains and ground water which flows to the existing river and as constructed details of these connections should be recorded and produced on a large scale drawing.

- 2 -

SER. ENGINEER I/O SEWERS AND WAIN DRAINAGE DEPARTMENT

64 be

Bal Ext Enols.

威加

....

1.66

SEWERS AND MAIN DRAINAGE DEPARTMENT

. And MA

the matter of the second

V LADY OF

22nd November, 1955.

REPORT TO/ CITY ENGINEER

.

re: Drainage of Ballymun Road

and the state and a sector

Arising out of flooding of Ballymun Road on the 8/12/1954 and, to a minor extent, on subsequent occasions, a surface water drainage examination of the area has been carried out. The original flooding of 1954 was due to (1) chokage of the Wad bridge at point B, which caused the Wad River to flow down Ballymun Road with subsequent flooding at G on the Claremont Stream, and (2) insufficient capacity of the surface water drainage system of Ballymun Road itself. Remedial proposals in respect of these items are set out below. The attached plan, to scale 12" = 1 mile, elaborates the points made.

(1) Wad Bridge

The catchment area draining to Wed Bridge at B is 626 acres, mainly composed of grasslands, for which a capacity of 6,260 cumins being 10 cumins per acre should be provided. This would keep it generally uniform with the downstream culvert capacities which are known to behave adequately. At present the Wad is piped from A to B in a 36-in. pipe of capacity 2,500 oumins. This pipe was choked but has now been cleaned and a grid placed at A. Wad Bridge itself (B) is a large culvert 3'9" wide by 4'8" high (arched) but is obstructed by a gas main and E.S.B. cables. The watermain in this road was carried under the culvert. The obstruction by the gas main is only minor, but the E.S.B. cables diminish the area of flow to 3'9" wide by 1'10" high. It has been found possible to deepen the culvert so as to give an area of flow of 3'9" by 2'8" high under the cables; this gives a capacity approximating to 6,000 cumins. As a temporary expedient this is adequate but due to the probability of silting-up would not be satisfactory as a permanent arrangement. It is proposed therefore that when plans are made in respect of the Collins Avenue Extension, in which I understand Messrs. Wates are interested, the Wad should be culverted along the line AD, thus by-passing the tortuous course ABCD. The section BCD would require to be piped in a small size. The proposed realignment would be obstructed by a watermain, a gas main and two lines of E.S.B. oil filled cables at A; these will require alteration, and it will be noted from the attached letter of the 24/9/1955 from the E.S.B. that the latter are prepared to undertake the cable alterations free of cost to the Corporation. They also offer a contribution of £20 towards cleaning of the culvert which is reasonable, having regard to the fact that the cables were carried through the culvert, to the best of my knowledge, with the approval of Dublin County Council, the responsible local authority previous to 1953. It is recommended that the E.S.B. proposals as set out in theirs of the 24/9/1955 be accepted and that they be informed to that effect.

The Gas Company, by letter of the 3/10/1955, have indicated their willingness to alter their main in the culvert when required; they should be requested to transfer this offer to cover alterations at A when the Collins Avenue Extension becomes more real.

In addition to the above, at the lowest road point between A and B, ree 9-inch outlets have been made from the road channel through the east k of Ballymun Road to permit copious road drainage to the Wad River stream of the culvert at B. To/ City Engineer

(2) Ballymun Road

The surface water drainage of Ballymun Road is non-uniform, consisting, in part, of a stone built drain equal in capacity to a 12-inch pipe, and for the remainder of a 9-inch pipe. There are insufficient manholes and gullies, the drainage of the east channel between B and F consists only of gripes out into the roadside ditch. The drainage area involved is estimated at 59 acres to the point G and pipe sizes of $15^{"} - 18^{"}$ would be required to deal with this as the present system is inadequate. Due to the fall southwards to the Claremont at G, surplus drainage accumulates at G with resultant flooding; temporary provision for this will be made by installing a number of arterial gullies.

The Special Works Department have at present road improvement proposals in respect of Ballymun Road before them. Provision for adequate drainage of the road should be included in the scheme prepared; this has been indicated verbally to who appears in agreement. The area of 59 acres to be provided for is shown coloured "orange" on attached plan.

At the point G, the road valley at the Claremont Stream, there are seven gullies which are readily choked with leaves. It is proposed therefore as a safeguard to lift four of these gullies and replace them with arterial gullies, three of which can be sited to give direct access to the Claremont Stream. This will give vastly improved outlet capacity and provide drainage less liable to chokage. This work can be carried out by this department to the Paving Department's order, who have verbally agreed with the proposal.

To summarise the points made above:-

- (a) The E.S.B. and Gas Company proposals should be agreed to as set out above;
- (b) Provision in the Collins Avenue Extension should be made for straightening the Wad River;
- (c) The Ballymun Road improvement scheme being prepared by Special Works Department should provide an adequate road drainage system;
- (d) The Paving Department should be instructed to issue an order to this department to install four arterial gullies at the Claremont Stream at Ballymun Road.

JHC/CG

Engl:

A/SENIOR ENGINEER I/C SEWERS AND MAIN DRAINAGE DEPARTMENT

NB It will be necessary to provide in the S. W. drawin of Ballyn Rd sufficient capacity to take art/line from the "feeder Server to ND DS. at Clamont Suffick The

9/3/60

CITY ENGINEER'S DEPARTMENT

29th January, 1965.

JHR/MJ

۰.:

Report to City Engineer.

Re: Council Question No.29.

wishes "to ask the City Manager to state the cause of the recent flooding at Santry, and if he could indicate what remedial measures he proposes to prevent flooding recurring at this point. Further to state if the gullies were in working order in the neighbourhood, and if there is any provision to compensate persons who have suffered losses by flooding."

The cause of the flooding was due to the partial chokage of the protecting grids at the south east corner of Buckley's Sports Field in the Albert College Grounds. Upstream of these grids, the Wad River is in open cut and runs along adjacent to the rear of a number of industrial sites. Hedges cut at the rear of these industrial sites, together with factory refuse, large tins, plastic bags, etc. were embedded in the grid, and caused the chokage. While it is probable that the grids were clear prior to the flood, as they are cleared by our routemen at least once a fortnight, and more frequently in inclement weather, the flood water would carry debris from the open banks of the river down to the grids in a very short time. As this river is in private lands, the Corporation have not control of the catchment.

The cause of the flooding on the roadway at Santry arose because the water, being unable to enter the culvert, re-routed itself overground and flowed to the lowest part on the roadway and was impounded there. The gullies on the roadway could be expected to deal with road drainage, and were overpowered by this excess flow. There are seven gullies in the vicinity of the hollow, and it is probable that some of these choked during the flood as considerable silt and papers would be carried to them.

These gullies were cleaned on the following dates, the 7th, 8th, 14th, 17th, 18th and 20th December, 1964.

Following this flooding, it is proposed to alter the layout of the gullies in the roadway so that similar type of flooding would be carried by the gullies more swiftly. In view of the development at Ballymun Housing Project, and the consequent increase in run-off from the upper catchment, it will be necessary to carry out major improvements to the culverting of the Wad River by diversion of the upper reaches to either the Tolka River or to the Claremont Stream. This investigation will be put in hands within the next six months, and should be completed within two years.

There is no provision for compensation for those who suffered losses by flooding.

Floading on 20th Jan. 65. Vice Lounge - Swords Rd. : longet domaged. (243 Swords Rd. Santry) Somet 20 Houses in neightourbood, : gardens & ground floors flooded. (IP" water) Bas : - ground floor flooded. Collins U.S. Est. : 10 darden flooded. Cloghrain 200 yols Belfart Ret, flooded by 2' water. (Santry Rever) Merrion yates - Tide coursed road flooding Churchtown floading coursed traffic diversions. Millow Dundhum Ballyhack Anton Altor Daas Dot at Means. Volkcwager floods made road impassable to light traffic for sweral hrs. (Camac Diver). Whitechurch - Rathfarmham-road flooding caused by overflowing of Dodder tributary, Blackhall St., one house flooded. Above summary taken from Inich Independant" 21" Jan. 25.



APPENDIX B - RECORD DRAINAGE MAPPING



UISCE ÉIREANN : IRISH WATER

Legend

- M Boundary Meter
- M Bulk Meter
- Unknown Meter ; Other Meter
- Non-Return

Sluice Valve Ope

Sluice Valve Closed

Sluice Valve Open

- Double Air Control Valve

Sluice Valve Closed

Water Hydrants

Hydrant Function

- + Fire Hydran
- Water Pump Stations
- Water Kiosk
- ⊔ Cap
- Other Fittings
- 🗕 Tap

Water Distribution Mains

Owned By
Irish Water

---- Private

Irish Water

------ Irish Water

Sewer Manholes

- Manhole Type
- Standard
- Other; Unknown
- Waste Water Pump station

Sewer Inlets

- Inlet Type
- Sewer Chambers
- Gravity Foul
- Gravity Overflow
- Pumping Foul
- Surface Gravity Mains

Storm Manholes Manhole Type

- Standard
- CP Catchpit
- Other; Unknown
 Storm Discharge Points

Discharge Type

Overflow

Storm Inlets

Inlet Type

1:1,250 at A0

Last edited: 07/05/2021

Metres 012.525 50

1. No part of this drawing may be reproduced or transmitted in any form or stored in any retrieval system of any nature without the written permission of Irish Water as copyright holder except as agreed for use on the project for which the document was originally issued.

2. Whilst every care has been taken in its compilation, Irish Water gives this information as to the position of its underground network as a general guide only on the strict understanding that it is based on the best available information provided by each Local Authority in Ireland to Irish Water. Irish Water can assume no responsibility for and give no guarantees, undertakings or warranties concerning the accuracy, completeness or up to date nature of the information provided and does not accept any liability whatsoever arising from any errors or omissions. This information should not be relied upon in the event of excavations or any other works being carried out in the vicinity of the Irish Water underground network. The onus is on the parties carrying out excavations or any other works to ensure the exact location of the Irish Water underground network is identified prior to excavations or any other works being carried out.
Service connection pipes are not generally shown but their presence should be anticipated.

© Copyright Irish Water

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey Of Ireland by Permission of the Government. License No. 3-3-34



APPENDIX C - OVERLAND FLOW ROUTES





APPENDIX D - PROPOSED SURFACE WATER DRAINAGE NETWORK

Ε



© The drawings & designs herein, remain copyright of EirEng Consulting Engineers Ltd & shall not be reproduced without appropriate written consent. _____ ____ colour drawing

ALL PIPEWORK MUST BE	PL1 PLANNING	G ISSUE		05.11.21	LL ED	
EST AND TEST RESULTS	Description			Date		
	Flaming					
	Client					
	Serendal	e Limited				
JILDING	Architect					
	JSA Arch	itects				
BUILDING						
SURFACE WATER SEWER						
SURFACE WATER MANHOLE						
				NC	ノ	
		CONS	ULTING EN	GINEE	R S	
	IRELAND - Roga	ans Court, Patrick Stree	et, Dunlaoghaire, 🛛 🖌	Info@airang.co	~	
JRFACE WATER MANHOLE	County Dublin, A96 T0H2 ■ +353 1 6638957 UNITED KINGDOM - Cambridge House South, Deireng.com					
	Henry Street, Ba	th, BA11BT ■ +44122	25 618222	-		
BASEMENT OUTLINE	OMNI PLAZA	SHD				
	Drawing Title					
SEDUM ROOF	PROPOSED SURFACE WATER					
		E LAYOU)			
PERMAVOID PODIUM			Dra Statua		.1	
ON AREAS						
	Drawn By	Checked By	Approved By	Checked	Date	
	L Lonergan	T Byrne	E Deasy	25.06	5.2021	
	Drawing Number	1		I	Revision	
	001101			^	DI つ	





- linfo@eireng.com
- ▶ eireng.com

DUBLIN OFFICE

- 🕲 +353 (0) 1 663 8957
- 3 Rogan's Court Patrick Street Dun Laoghaire County Dublin A96 TOH2 Ireland

Registered in IRL Company Reg No. 501522

BATH OFFICE

& +44 (0) 1225 618 222

 Cambridge House Henry Street Bath BA1 1BT UK

> Registered in UK Company Reg No. 13057536

DIRECTORS:

T. Sheehan, J. Lamb, E. Deasy